
Phone 301.600.6300 • Fax 301.600.6313 • info@emmitsburgmd.gov • www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

Town of Emmitsburg 
Mayor Donald N. Briggs 

300A South Seton Avenue • Emmitsburg, Maryland 21727 

Board of Commissioners,  

Timothy O’Donnell, President  

Clifford Sweeney, Vice President 

T.J. Burns, Treasurer  

Joseph Ritz III 

Frank Davis 

Town Manager 

Cathy Willets 

Town Clerk 

Julie Scott 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN MEETING AGENDA PACKET 

TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 – 7:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. FUTURE MEETINGS  

FY 2023 Budget Meeting: Monday, May 16, 2022 at 7:30 p.m. (Town Office & Zoom) 

Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting: Tuesday, May 17, 2022 at 7:30 p.m. (Town Office) 

Planning Commission Meeting: Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. (Town Office) 

Town Council Meeting: Monday, June 6, 2022 at 7:30 p.m. (Town Office & Zoom) 

4. MEETING ITEMS  

A. APPROVE MINUTES: APRIL 4, 2022 

B. POLICE REPORT  

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT  

E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS  

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS (DETAILS ATTACHED) 

(A). Presentation of proposed work to address flooding issue on the E. Eugene Myers 

Community Park walking path. 

(B). Construction of new ¼-mile long section of trail to link the green and yellow trails 

for consideration. 

I. CONSENT AGENDA:  

 Re-Appoint Shannon Cool, Glenn Blanchard, Sandy Umbel, Steve Starliper, and 

Amanda Ryder to the Parks and Recreation Committee with a term of December 3, 

2021 through December 3, 2023. 

 Proposal of Trail Volunteer Workdays. 

J. TREASURER’S REPORT 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  

L. AGENDA ITEMS (DETAILS ATTACHED) 

(1). Initial presentation of the Fiscal Year 2023 budget. 

(2). Review and approval of the St. Euphemia’s Wayside Exhibit for consideration. 

(3). Approval of ordinance 2022-01, which will incorporate the Board’s findings.  Motion 

and vote will be presented in writing to Board for approval and execution. 

 At their meeting on April 4, 2022, the Board approved a zoning map 

amendment, which changes the zoning designation of two parcels at the 

entrance of Brookfield on Timbermill Run from Neighborhood Commercial 

(B-1) to Low Density Residential (R-1). This ordinance details the Board’s 

findings of facts as required by state and local law.   

mailto:info@emmitsburgmd.gov
http://www.emmitsburgmd.gov/


(4). Approval of Policy P22-02, update to parking fees & fines, for consideration. 

 This policy would modernize the Town’s parking meter fees, permits, and 

fines, which have not been reviewed since 2018.  Meter bag permits and 

parking meter fees would gradually be increased from 07/2022 – 07/2026 in 

order to help fund various parking upgrades throughout the Town.  A five-

year parking plan will be presented to the Board. 

(5). Approval of Ordinance 2022-02, update to Title 10 – Parking, for consideration. 

 This ordinance would modernize the Town’s Vehicles & Traffic Code in 

order to allow parking meter fees, meter bag fees, and parking fines to be 

paid by credit card via a third party vendor.  It would change the parking 

meter hours of operation to 8am – 8pm Monday through Saturday.  Parking 

boots would be allowed to be utilized.  Fines are moved from ordinance to 

policy.  

(6). Forward proposed Ordinance 2022-03 (zoning text amendment to Chapters 17.04, 

17.20, & 17.44) to the Planning Commission and set public hearing for June 6, 2022 

for consideration. (POSTPONED) 

 This ordinance would make the following changes: 

o Chapter 17.04 – Add the definition of “Hostel”. 

o Chapter 17.20 – Allow Hostels as a permitted by right use in the 

General Commercial Zoning District.   

o Chapter 17.44 – Update the zoning map & text amendment process 

in order to be compliant with State Law.  

M. SET AGENDA FOR FY 2023 BUDGET MEETING: MAY 16, 2022 

N. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: JUNE 6, 2022 

5. SIGN APPROVED TEXT AMENDMENTS AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

6. ADJOURN



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

ZOOM MEETING ACCESS INFORMATION: 

 

Town of Emmitsburg is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: Town Meeting:  May 2, 2022 

Time: May 2, 2022 07:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87484781154 

 

Meeting ID: 874 8478 1154 

Passcode: 21727 

One tap mobile 

+13017158592,,87484781154#,,,,*21727# US (Washington DC) 

+13126266799,,87484781154#,,,,*21727# US (Chicago) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

Meeting ID: 874 8478 1154 

Passcode: 21727 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd6BqBGZu6 

 

The town meeting will begin at 7:30 p.m. If you would like to speak during public comment or 

an agenda item, you must sign-up to speak BEFORE 7:30 p.m. Sign-up to speak by emailing 

your name, address and topic you’d like to speak on to jscott@emmitsburgmd.gov or calling 

(301) 600-6300. 

 

You can also watch the town meeting live on cable channel 99. A recording will be posted to 

YouTube after (@Town of Emmitsburg). 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

A. APPROVE MINUTES 

MINUTES 

TOWN MEETING 

APRIL 4, 2022 

TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 
 

Present:  Elected Officials - Mayor Donald Briggs; Commissioners: Timothy O’Donnell, President; 

Clifford Sweeney, Vice President; T.J. Burns, Treasurer, Joseph Ritz III; and Frank Davis. Staff Present - 

Cathy Willets, Town Manager; Julie Scott, Town Clerk; Amy Naill, Code Enforcement Officer; Zachary 

Gulden, Town Planner; Cole Tabler, Town Accountant; and Madeline Shaw, Grants Administrator. 

Others Present - Sergeant Mark Linehan, Deputy Jason Ahalt, Deputy Cole Bartholow, Leslie Powell, 

Town Attorney.  

 

I. Call to Order  
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O’Donnell, President of the Board of Commissioners, 

called the April 4, 2022 town meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Upcoming 

meetings were announced. Cathy Willets, Town Manager, advised there will be a FY 2023 Budget 

Meeting at the Town Office on Monday, May 16, 2022 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Approval of Minutes 
Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to accept the March 7, 2022 town meeting minutes as presented; 

second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. Motion: Commissioner 

Davis motioned to accept the March 16, 2022 town meeting minutes as presented; second by 

Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted.  

 

Police Report: 

Sergeant Linehan explained the changes in deputy assignments for Emmitsburg. Deputy Paul Graves was 

re-assigned to Myersville and Deputy Cole Bartholow will fill the opening in the Emmitsburg area. 

Deputy Jason Ahalt presented the police report from February and March 2022. (exhibit attached). 

Commissioner Sweeney requested one of the deputies attend the Citizen’s Advisory Committee meeting 

on Tuesday, April 19, 2022. An update on the recent accident on Irishtown Road was provided and 

Deputy Ahalt confirmed it was not related to the construction in that area.  Increased law enforcement 

was requested around West Main Street during the early hours based on concerns received from citizens 

regarding speeding and loud vehicles. Deputy Ahalt reassured the Town that traffic enforcement is 

priority and advised that a jake brake ordinance would need to be adopted for truck noise enforcement. 

 

Town Managers Report: 

Cathy Willets, Town Manager, presented the Manager’s Report from February 2022. (exhibit in agenda 

packet). Proper etiquette at the dog park was reviewed due to repeated issues with improper waste 

disposal and clogging of the water fountain. Bulk trash pick-up for Saturday, April 9, 2022 was confirmed 

including times and accepted items. 

 

Town Planners Report:  
Zachary Gulden, Town Planner, presented the Planner’s Report from February 2022. (exhibit in agenda 

packet). The Town was granted $20,000 for the MS4 tree planting as opposed to the $10,000 that was 

originally expected. Four single family dwelling zoning permits for Brookfield were processed and the 2 

remaining lots have been sold. He clarified the stop work order for the home demolition on DePaul Street 

and the steps the homeowner needs to take to rectify this issue. The proposal request for the street 

sweeper vendor was discussed.  The company for the forestry stand 10 project was issued a time 

extension due to COVID and this is anticipated to be completed by December 31, 2022. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

Commissioner Comments:  

 Commissioner Ritz III: He acknowledged the increased attendance at this meeting and thanked 

everyone for coming. He recently visited Tuscany’s Pizza and looks forward to eating there again 

soon. The Frederick County Public Schools band concert in the town bandstand is no longer 

happening due to a liability issue with the schools. Commissioner Sweeney suggested the Lions 

Club could sponsor since they have a special event liability policy. 

 Commissioner Davis: He has also visited Tuscany’s Pizza several times. He praised the local 

restaurants and encouraged everyone to continue supporting our local businesses. He attended 

opening day for the Thurmont Little League. They have opened their teams to Emmitsburg children 

and have also added girls’ softball. At this time, every ballfield will be utilized this year and he is 

happy to see them being used consistently. 

 Commissioner Burns: He attended Troop 270’s Blue and Gold Banquet. He congratulated all the 

cub and boy scouts who participated in the bridging ceremony and raising of ranks. He also 

participated in the hockey fundraiser for Deputy Olander. There were about 150 people in 

attendance and close to $5,000 was raised for the family. 

 Commissioner Sweeney: He advised that softball and little league will start on Tuesday, April 5, 

2022 and the fields will be used 3-4 nights per week. There is a tournament scheduled the first two 

weekends in June for travelling teams when they will use all of the fields and visit local businesses. 

He invited everyone to the Community Day meeting at the Knights of Columbus building on 

Monday, April18, 2022. He thanked the fire department for letting them use their building for the 

fundraiser that was held on Saturday, April 2, 2022. He requested the deputies be present in town 

during the tournament as well as on Community Day. 

 Commissioner O’Donnell: He clarified that Community Day and Heritage Day are the same event 

and the names get used interchangeably. He announced that a public hearing will occur at this 

meeting. He commended the disc golf group for their avid use of the course and the tournament 

they held last weekend brought additional visitors to the Town. He sends his condolences to the 

Blumenfeld family regarding the passing of Shawn Blumenfeld, the cyclist who was struck and 

killed by a vehicle on Route 140. Information regarding his memorial service is forthcoming. He 

also reminded everyone to be vigilant as the weather grows warmer, since there are more people 

outdoors and children outside playing. He invited everyone, especially those with small children, to 

the free Easter Egg Hunt in Community Park on Sunday, April 10, 2022.  

 

Mayor’s Comments:  

Mayor Briggs attended numerous meetings in March 2022 (meetings listed in agenda packet). Mayor 

Briggs commended everyone for all the additional events and activities they have planned to increase 

community participation and bring visitors to the Town. He announced pickle ball lines will be added to 

the tennis courts, expanding activity options. The St. Euphemia’s Wayside Exhibit was approved by the 

Daughters of Charity and will be presented to the Board in May. He mentioned several of the grant-

funded projects and thanked Town Staff for their work on those. He invited everyone to watch his 

monthly podcasts, and apologized that the one scheduled with Insurance Brokers of Maryland on Friday, 

April 1, 2022 was cancelled. He wished everyone a Happy Easter.   

 

Public Comments: 

Brian McKenney, DePaul Street – Mr. McKenney requested the Town address the two low lying spots 

where the water bridges across the paved path in Community Park since the previous attempts to rectify 

this issue did not work. Town Staff are aware of this issue, but since the path was constructed in a 

floodplain it is difficult to fix. This issue will be revisited with the Town Planner and the Director of 

Public Works to see if they can come up with a more permanent solution. Commissioner O’Donnell 

advised he will follow up with Mr. McKenney as well as with Town Staff. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

Administrative Business: 

(A). Proclamation declaring April 2022 Child Abuse Prevention month: Mayor Briggs read the 

proclamation aloud. Kristen Dunn with Frederick County Department of Social Services Child 

Advocacy Center (CAC), introduced herself as well as Heiress, the facility dog. She explained the 

services the CAC provides to children and caregivers. There will be blue pinwheels “planted” in 

Emmitsburg during the month of April to raise awareness. Motion: Commissioner Ritz III 

motioned to accept the proclamation as presented; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas - 5; 

Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. 

(B). Proclamation declaring April 16, 2022 as Arbor Day: President O’Donnell read the 

proclamation aloud and announced the upcoming Stream Link Tree Plantings. Volunteers are 

invited to help with these events. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the 

proclamation as presented; second by Commissioner Burns. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was 

adopted. 

(C). Designation of two Open Meetings Act representatives for consideration: Ms. Willets 

presented the item.  She provided information regarding the designation and training 

requirements for public entities subject to the Open Meetings Act.  She recommends the Town 

Clerk, Julie Scott, as the designated Town Staff representative and deferred to the Board for their 

recommendation of a Commissioner representative. Commissioner O’Donnell and Commissioner 

Sweeney volunteered to be the Board designees for the Open Meeting Act representatives. 

Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to designate Commissioner O’Donnell, Commissioner 

Sweeney, and Julie Scott as the Open Meeting Act representatives for the Town; second by 

Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. 

 

Consent Agenda: 

Appoint _______ as an alternate to the Board of Appeals with a term of April 4, 2022 through January 11, 

2024.  Ms. Willets requested a postponement of this item. The Mayor is seeking to fill the alternate 

vacancy on the Board of Appeals, but there are currently no volunteers. Interested persons should contact 

the Town Office. 

 

Treasurer’s Report: 

Commissioner Burns presented the Treasurer’s Report for March 2022 (exhibit in agenda packet). 

 

Planning Commission Report: 
Commissioner Ritz III presented the report. The Commission last met on Monday, March 28, 2022. At 

this meeting, they approved the request in the East Industrial Park II for no sidewalks, curbs, and gutters 

as well as a reduction in the amount of required vehicle and bicycle parking spaces. The vote for approval 

of the Federal Stone site plan has been postponed. They voted in favor of recommending to the Board that 

RJD Development Corporation successfully demonstrated a mistake in zoning for the parcels at the 

entrance of Brookfield.  This is related to Agenda Item #2 and the public hearing. The Commission is not 

scheduled to meet in April and the next meeting is tentatively scheduled for May 23, 2022. 

 

II. Agenda Items 
Agenda #1 - To consider a real property tax rate that exceeds the constant yield tax rate.  The Board will 

consider whether or not to reduce the real property tax rate sufficiently to fully offset tax revenues 

resulting from increasing assessments to make the property tax revenues equivalent to the prior year’s tax 

revenues (the constant yield tax rate), excluding new development: Ms. Willets, Town Manger and Mr. 

Tabler, Town Accountant presented the item. Ms. Willets explained the constant yield tax rate, how it is 

calculated, and how the state determines its recommendation for the rate. Town Staff recommend the rate 

of $0.3464 per $100 of assessment for FY 2023. This is 3.7% higher than the current state’s 

recommended rate of $0.3340. Mr. Tabler advised that the tax rate has been $0.3464 for the past several 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 7 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

years, except for FY 2022 where the decrease resulted in a significant loss of revenue. The proposed rate 

will increase revenue to offset rising operating costs. The state recommendation to lower tax rates and the 

increase in the amount of state required mandates that require town funding were discussed. Motion: 

Commissioner Davis motioned to motioned to maintain the constant yield tax rate of $0.3464 per $100 of 

assessment in FY 2023; seconded by Commissioner Burns. Yays - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. 

 

Agenda #2 - Zoning map amendment public hearing and consideration for Lots C and D as shown on the 

Final Plat of Section 1 – Plat 1 Parcels “C”, “D” & “E” of Brookfield recorded in Plat Book No. 58, Page 

40: A public hearing on this item was held. President O’Donnell provided an overview and called the 

public hearing to order. Leslie Powell, Town Attorney, provided additional guidance on this process. The 

applicant, staff, and public testifying took an oath and were sworn in. The petition to determine if lots “C” 

and “D” should be rezoned from neighborhood commercial to residential was presented to the Board. Mr. 

Gulden advised that the applicant intends to construct 7 single family detached residential homes on that 

property. He provided the Planning Commission recommendations as well as explained the requirements 

of the rezoning petition, the change or mistake rule, and the factors that led to the mistake after the 

adoption of the last comprehensive plan. Ms. Powell advised that an ordinance that sets forth the findings 

of the Board needs to be presented at the next meeting. Bruce Dean, attorney with the law firm of 

McCurdy, Dean, and Graditor in Frederick, MD presented on behalf of the applicant, Richard Demmitt 

with RJD Development Corporation. A summation was given to provide evidence of a mistake in zoning 

and a change in the character of the neighborhood. The applicant, Mr. Demmitt from Clarksville, MD, 

provided comment on the lack of market interest in that area and the reasons he believes a mistake was 

made. The Board discussed the impact additional homes could have on public facilities, primarily school 

capacity and storm water management. Town population, infrastructure, commercial development, and 

viability were also considered. They determined that a few additional homes would not be detrimental, 

but this could change with future growth. President O’Donnell opened the hearing to public comment. 

Dianne Walbrecker, West Main Street, participated in the development of the original comprehensive 

plan. She explained the mixed-use vision and the intent for that design. She suggested looking into other 

opportunities to develop that area as neighborhood commercial and encouraged the Board to reevaluate 

the zoning in that location during the next comprehensive plan to allow time to gather more information 

from the citizens. Bob Laudani, Timbermill Run, commented on the length of time the property has been 

vacant and the lack of interest from commercial developers. He would rather see houses built in that area 

than businesses and is concerned about the implications of commercial traffic in that area. He asked the 

Board to work with the developer to allow the houses to be built to benefit the neighborhood as well as 

the Town. Chuck Karfonta, Catonsville, MD, is associated with RJD Development, and supports the 

findings that a mistake was made in zoning. He pointed out that a few different companies attempted to 

have a convenience store in that area but left because they were not successful. In his opinion, that part of 

town is not designed for commercial business. President O’Donnell opened the hearing to applicant 

rebuttal, but Mr. Dean had nothing to add so the hearing moved to Board discussion. The Board 

expressed understanding of the original goal for the comprehensive plan but questioned the timeframe 

needed to determine if commercial development is viable there. Commissioner Sweeney explained that 

the zoning in the original comprehensive plan was intended to bring businesses into that area of town. At 

this time, the Board is unsure if commercial is ever going to work there due to the closure of previous 

businesses in that location and lack of demand in that part of the Town. They discussed the shift in small 

community design to one-stop type of shopping. President O’Donnell opened the meeting to the fact-

finding questions portion where the Board applied the evidence presented to all required questions. 

Commissioner Ritz III requested a brief summary be included with future agenda items that contain 

technical language so they are clear and understandable for the public. Motion: Commissioner Burns 

motioned to approve the applicant’s request for the rezoning of parcels “C” and “D” from B1 to R1 based 

on the factual findings made by the Board; seconded by Commissioner Davis. Yays - 5; Nays - 0. The 

motion was adopted. 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 8 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

Agenda #3 - Approval of the abandonment of a sewer easement located at the Emmitsburg East Industrial 

Park II property for consideration: Mr. Gulden presented the item. Federal stone wants to develop the 

property in this area and has requested that the Town abandon this sewer line easement. Town Staff 

confirmed that it was never used and is no longer needed. A declaration of abandonment in the land 

records will need to be filed. Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to approve the abandonment of a 

sewer easement located at the Emmitsburg East Industrial Park II property; second by Commissioner Ritz 

III. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. 

 

Agenda #4 - Town of Emmitsburg participation in the Maryland Low Income Household Water 

Assistance Program (LIHWAP) for consideration: Ms. Willets presented the item. She explained this 

program is to help those struggling to pay their water and sewer bill. Eligibility, participation, application, 

and funding were also discussed. Information will be provided on the website, Facebook and newsletters. 

A flyer will also be included with any past due notices. She suggested that people make sure their phone 

numbers are listed on their water and sewer bills so that Town Staff can reach out, if needed. The Board 

suggested contacting Seton Center to let them know this program is available. Motion: Commissioner 

Sweeney motioned to approve the Town of Emmitsburg’s participation in the Maryland Low Income 

Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP); second by Commissioner Burns. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. 

The motion was adopted. 

 

Agenda #5 - Approval of bid for the purchase and installation of advanced license plate readers for 

consideration: Ms. Shaw presented the item. This is a grant-funded project to aid law enforcement in 

locating wanted vehicles, but are not used for speed enforcement. The locations, system equipment, and 

bid information were reviewed. Town Staff recommend Applied Technology Services in the amount of 

$42,140.19. This company was selected due to favorable references, familiarity with local systems, and 

software compatibility. Sergeant Keith Johnson with the Maryland State Police Coordination and 

Analysis Center (MCAC) joined the meeting via the Zoom teleconferencing platform. He provided 

additional guidance on the state system as well as data viability. There are no additional fees for this 

service, data is restricted to law enforcement use, and safety measures are followed to protect the 

information collected. The Board discussed the proposed locations, the benefit to the community, and the 

option of adding a speed camera in the school zone. Town Staff will provide bids for surveillance cameras 

at a later date. Motion: Commissioner Burns motioned to approve Applied Technology Services bid in the 

amount of $42,140.19 for the purchase and installation of advanced license plate readers with 24/7 power; 

second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas - 4; Nays - 1. Commissioner Ritz III voted Nay. The motion 

was adopted. 

 

Agenda #6 - Approval of a change order with MIM Construction, Inc., FY21 sidewalk accessibility ramps 

FY 21contract 21-SA-21, the amount of $62,864.50 for consideration: Mr. Gulden presented the item. 

This is a grant-funded project that came in under budget for the construction of ADA sidewalks.  He is 

seeking approval for the use of these excess funds to add or improve sidewalks and ramps throughout 

town for ADA accessibility. This would not impact future water and line work. Motion: Commissioner 

Sweeney motioned to approve the change order with MIM Construction, Inc. in the amount of 

$62,864.50; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted.  

 

Set Agenda Items for May 2, 2022 Town Meeting 

 

Administrative Business: NONE Consent Items: (I.) Proposal of Trail Volunteer Workdays. Agenda 

Items: (1.) Initial presentation of the Fiscal Year 2023 budget. (2.) Review and approval of the St. 

Euphemia’s Wayside Exhibit for consideration. (3.) Approval of ordinance 2022-01, which will 

incorporate the Board’s findings.  Motion and vote will be presented in writing to Board for approval and 

execution. (4.) Approval of Policy P22-02, update to parking fees & fines, for consideration. (5.) 

Approval of Ordinance 2022-02, update to Title 10 – Parking, for consideration. (6.) Forward proposed 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 9 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

Ordinance 2022-03 (zoning text amendment to Chapters 17.04, 17.20, & 17.44) to the Planning 

Commission and set public hearing for June 6, 2022 for consideration. Further discussion occurred 

regarding the agenda items for the May 2, 2022 Town Meeting. Agenda item 6 may need to be postponed 

as the priority for the June 6, 2022 is the FY 2023 budget. Mr. Gulden provided clarification on agenda 

item 4 and 6. Ms. Willets advised that depending on the status of water and sewer trainee position, there 

may be a need for closed session for the potential hiring of a candidate after the May 2 or May 16, 2022 

meeting. Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to approve the May 2, 2022 Town Meeting Agenda as 

presented; second by Commissioner Burns. Yeas - 5; Nays - 0. The motion was adopted. 

 

III. Sign Approved Text Amendments and/or Resolutions  

 

IV.  Adjournment 
 With no further business, Commissioner Burns motioned to adjourn the April 4, 2022 Town 

Meeting; second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. The meeting adjourned at 11:12 

p.m. 

  

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 Julie Scott, Town Clerk  

 Minutes Approved On:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 10 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

B. POLICE REPORT: Presentation by deputies at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 11 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

Town Manager’s Report 

March 2022 

Prepared by Cathy Willets  

 

Streets: 

 Staff replaced and repaired some street signs around town.  

 Staff conducted monthly street sweeping. 

 Staff repaired and replaced some street lights. 

 Staff conducted monthly storm drain inlet cleaning. 

 Staff cold patched some pot holes around Town. 

 Staff power washed message board in front of 22 East Main St. 

 Staff and contractor responded for a snow event. 

 Staff took down damaged Welcome to Emmitsburg sign on North Seton Ave. 

 Staff trimmed shrubs, trees and bushes along creek bed on Creamery Rd. 

 Staff removed snow flags from fire hydrants. 

  

Parks: 

 Staff conducted daily park checks – trash cans, cameras, dog waste stations, restrooms. 

 Staff conducted monthly park maintenance – playground equipment, roads, fences, 

pavilions, etc.  

 Staff working on new board fence project in Community Park. 

 Completed contract for tree removal project in Emmit Gardens and Community Park. 

 Staff removed graffiti from signs, dugouts, pavilions and picnic tables in parks. 

 Staff scraped and painted two park benches in Memorial Park. 

 Staff trimmed tree limbs around Community Park dog park. 

 Staff pulled weeds and weed killed the Memorial area in Community Park. 

 Staff summarized all restroom buildings, concession stand and dog park. 

Water: 

 Rainbow Lake is at the spillway level (16.6 feet).  

 The roughing filters are being backwashed two times a day by the end of the month.  The DE 

filters are getting two week runs. 

 Well levels (optimum level was determined to be May 2011).  

 

 May 2011  March  Change 

o Well #1:   35’  33’  +2’           

o Well #2:   8’  9’  -1’              

o Well #3:   12’  30’  -1’           

o Well #4:   108’  OFF  N/A        

o Well #5:   10’  OFF  N/A   



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 12 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 Water production and consumption.  We produced an average of 216,371 GPD.  We 

consumed an average of 217,499 GPD (finish water + MSM).  The amount of Backwash 

Water in the month of March is ... (11.83%).  

 

 20% of this water came from wells. 

  6% of this water came from Mt. St. Mary's. 

 74% of this water came from Rainbow Lake.  

 

We purchased 438,400 gallons of water from MSM this month.  

 

Wastewater: 

 We treated an average of 582,000 gpd (consumed 217,499 GPD) which means that 

the 63 % of the wastewater treated this month was "wild water".   

 We did not have any spills of untreated sewage in the month of March.   

 We did not exceed the plant’s design capacity in the month of March. 

 We received about 2.25” of precipitation this month (the average is 4.05”).   We have 

a precipitation DEFICIT of 5.60” over the last six months.  The average precipitation 

for the period from October 1 through March 31 is 20.25“.  We have received 14.65” 

for that period.   

 

Trash:  Trash pickup will remain Mondays in the month of May except Memorial Day.  Trash 

will be picked up Tuesday, May 31st. 

  

Meetings Attended: 

 

 03/01 Met with Mayor  

 03/02 Met with staff and Federal Stone to review plans 

 03/02 Attended bid opening with staff for ALPR 

 03/03 Attended initial FY23 budget planning meeting with staff 

 03/04 Attended initial FY23 budget planning meeting with staff 

 03/07 Attended Town Meeting 

 03/08 Attended meeting staff re: potential development 

 03/08 Attended webinar regarding: Low Income Household Assistance Program 

 03/09 Attended personnel meeting with water/sewer staff 

 03/15 Attended meeting with staff to review Federal Stone plan 

 03/16 Attended budget presentation meeting with staff 

 03/16 Attended Town Meeting 

 03/17 Met with Mayor 

 03/21 Attended ARPA reporting webinar 

 03/22 Conference call with staff and Town Attorney re: Welty Ave. code enforcement 

 03/23 Attended department head meeting 

 03/23 Attended support staff meeting 

 03/25 Attended Frederick County ALERT training 

 03/25 Attended meeting with staff and contractor re: water/sewer rate and connection fee 

study 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 13 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

Noteworthy: 

 Staff pumps holding tank every 10 days at 8533 Hampton Valley Rd. 

 Staff worked the yard waste dumpster twice in March. 

 Staff conducted monthly equipment and fire extinguisher maintenance. 

 Staff did some water meter upgrades. 

 Staff completed some use and occupancy permit inspections.  

 Staff worked with contractor installing new sewer service to 500 and 502 East Main St. 

 Contractor blacktopped sewer line ditch on Creamery Rd. 

 Staff conducted quarterly meter readings. 

 Contractor repaired the east side of the salt shed at the WWTP. 

 Staff completed water and wastewater capacity management reports for MDE and 

County. 

 Rutter’s is still boring under Rte. 140. Once completed they will start installing sewer and 

water lines toward the new pump station. 

 Staff working with Federal Stone re: tie in of their lot and grinder pump. 

 WTP storage tank levels have been adjusted and are now very accurate. 

 Hydrant flushing scheduled for week of April 25th.  Discolored water complaints after 

staff replaced two curb stops on East Main St. and the line was turned back on. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PARKING ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

March 2022 

 

 

Overtime Parking   117 

Restricted Parking Zone           11 

Street Sweeping     

Parked in Crosswalk  

Parked on Sidewalk/Curb     

Parked by Fire Hydrant   

Parked Blocking Street     

Failure to Park between Lines     1 

Left Side Parking      2 

48 Consecutive Hours            5 

 Meter Money   $    937.21 

Parking Ticket Money   $ 2,120.00 

Total:     $  3057.21 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT  

Town Planner’s Report – March 2022 

Prepared by Zach Gulden, MPA 

 

1. Board of Commissioners (BOC): 

 Attended the 3/7 BOC meeting and processed pre/post meeting materials. 

 Attended a meeting regarding the sewer/water rate study on 3/25. 

 Finalized proposed Policy P22-02 – update to parking fees & fines. 

 Worked on Proposed Ordinance 2022-02 – Update to Title 10 – Vehicles & 

Traffic.  

 Prepared BOC staff memo for zoning map amendment.  

 

2. Grants: 

 Community Legacy grant management. 

o Submitted the quarterly report for FY21 award. 

o Completed grant award & agreements for 2x projects.  

 Chesapeake Bay Trust: 

o Silo Hill SWM basin retrofit design & permitting grant management.   

 Submitted grant extension request.  

 Community Development Block Grant (ADA Ramps) management: 

o Conducted 6x construction inspection. 

o Processed payment request #6 & 7. 

o Processed grant reimbursement request #6 & 7.  

o Reviewed & processed weeks #30, 31, & 32 payrolls.   

o Prepared contract addendum #1 / for work with extra grant funds.  

o Finalized grading permit with County. 

o 122 ramps are completed to date.    

 Community Development Block Grant (DePaul St waterlines): 

o Attended a virtual grant workshop on 3/24. 

 Main Street Communities Cooperative Fund: 

o Applied for $10,000 in order to fund denied Community Legacy grant 

applications.  

 

3. Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4): 

 Silo Hill SWM basin retrofit & tree planting project management. 

 SWM Utility Feasibility Study project management: 

o Worked with contractor on creating educational brochure.   

o Started researching utility implementation.  

 SWM Utility implementation: 

o Reviewed and started transferring data for implementation phase.  

o Issued addresses for 47 vacant lots.  

 Worked with contractor/attorney on Cedar Ave swale project.  

 Finalized street sweeping RFP & put out to bid.  

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

4. Code Enforcement & Permits: 

 Processed 13x zoning permit applications: 

o 4x single-family dwellings (3x – Brookfield & 1x - Southgate). 

o 2x fences. 

o 4x signs. 

o 1x change of use – boarding house.  

o 1x patio.  

o 1x deck. 

 Processed 17x backflow preventer permit applications.    

 Applied for a Frederick County building permit for new Town sign. 

 Worked with contractor on applying for electric permit for new Town sign.  

 Worked with Frederick County on getting Town sign approved on County 

property.  

 Mailed 1x high hazard backflow permit required letter.  

 Attended a meeting at the Gettysburg Borough on 3/15 with code enforcement 

officer regarding parking enforcement software.  

 Met with code enforcement/permitting software company on 3/8 & 3/22. 

 Met with manager & town attorney on 3/22 regarding Welty Avenue court case. 

 Prepared documents for court cases (Welty Avenue & East Main Street). 

 Attended court trials with code enforcement officer on 3/23 & 3/30 (Welty 

Avenue). 

 Met with parking enforcement/permitting software company on 3/25. 

 Responded to incident reports.  

 

5. Planning Commission (PC): 

 Rutter’s, Irishtown Road (Brookfield Lots 1-19), Federal Stone, Village Liquors 

& Plaza Inn, and Ripleigh’s Creamery, & Emmitsburg East Industrial Park II 

project management.  

 Pump Station Project: 

o Reviewed improvement plat for Mayor & PC signatures. 

 Village Liquors & Plaza Inn: 

o Reviewed Corrected Site Plan for Mayor & PC Signatures. 

o Reviewed Corrected Improvement Plan for Mayor & PC Signatures.  

 Federal Stone: 

o Reviewed and finalized staff memo for site plan.  

o Reviewed the final subdivision plat for Mayor & PC signatures. 

o Met with Federal Stone & Visit Frederick Count on 3/1 regarding fast 

tracking permitting & business incentives.  

o Met with Federal Stone, manager, public works director, & sewer/water 

superintendent on 3/2. 

o Met with manager, public works director, & sewer/water superintendent 

on 3/15 to discuss staff memo.  

o Delivered subdivision plans to Health Department on 3/29.  

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 Rutter’s: 

o Worked with engineer on sewer construction specification approvals.   

 Emmitsburg East Industrial Park II: 

o Met with town manager & potential developer of Lots 5 & 6 on 3/7. 

o Reviewed final forest conservation plan for Mayor & PC signatures.  

 Zoning map amendment – Entrance of Brookfield: 

o Finalized staff memo for PC meeting. 

 Attended the 3/28 PC meeting and processed pre/post meeting materials. 

 

6. Miscellaneous: 

 Forestry stand 10 project management: 

o Prepared contract addendum to provide a time extension.  

 Worked with contractor on the street tree plan.  

 Created an address for Emmit Gardens’ Park (21 Park Drive). 

 Various website updates under Planning Department.   

 Attended a budget meeting on 3/3.   

 Provided floodplain map to sewer/water superintendent.  

 Met with contractor and sewer/water superintendent on 3/17 regarding GIS 

upgrade project.  

 Attended a department head meeting on 3/23. 

 Provided information to sewer/water superintendent to update sewer/water 

capacity plan with Frederick County Health Department.  

 Met with manager & water/sewer superintendent on 3/31.   

 

7. New Business / Development Updates: 

 Brookfield 10-unit cul-de-sac – Sketch plan submitted.  Zoning map amendment 

submitted to change zoning from B-1 to R-1.   

 Christ’s Community Church – concept plan submitted to build 12,500 sq. ft. 

church with 98 parking spaces on Creamery Road around Quality Tire.     

 Emmit Ridge 2 - Property has sold to an investor.  RJD Development & Ryan 

Homes working with investor to purchase.  Wetlands have been found to 

compromise 8 proposed lots and part of proposed Irishtown Drive.  Wetland 

mitigation will need to be approved by State of MD.  48 total lots proposed.  

 Federal Stone - Final subdivision plat, forest conservation plan, & site plan have 

been submitted for combined lots 7 & 8.   

 Frailey Farm - Property is for sale.  No activity with the Town this month.  

 Mason Dixson Logistics Park (Trout Property) – concept plan submitted to 

staff.  Commercial / industrial park.   

 MDOT/SHA Park & Ride – Design is 15% complete.  Project is on hold due to 

State budget cuts resulting from COVID-19.  Staff working with legislators to 

push project forward. No activity with the town this month.   

 Ripleigh’s Creamery – Working on obtaining FC building permit.    

 Rutter’s – active construction.  Expected completion is late summer of 2022.   



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 Village Liquors & Plaza Inn – Working with FC on erosion & sediment control 

and stormwater management permits.  Also working on conditions of approval on 

Town site & improvement plans.     

 Warthen’s Court 5-unit townhomes – Sketch plan submitted.  Developer is 

preparing required engineered plans for Planning Commission submittal.   

 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 18 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS  

Meetings attended since last town meeting: 

 Monday, April 4th @ 7:30 PM: regularly scheduled town monthly meeting.  

 Friday, April 9th @ 11:30 AM: meeting with Town Manager Willets and Commissioner Burns, 

Zoom call with Frederick County Public Schools building staff. 

 Sunday, April 10th @ 1:00 PM: attended Knights of Columbus Easter Egg Roll in Meyers Park 

with Commissioner Burns. 

 Tuesday, April 18th @ 2:30 PM: special meeting with Town Manager regarding staff evaluations. 

 Wednesday, April 20th @ 6:30 PM: Mount St Mary’s University Frederick Campus - Mount 

Alumni, College of Liberal Arts Symposium. 

 Thursday, April 21st @ 8:30 AM, St. Johns College, Annapolis - Santa Fe Classics Symposium 

(virtual). 

 Friday, April 22nd @ 10:30 AM: Mount St. Mary’s University College of Liberal Arts, Academic 

Advisory Board meeting (virtual). 

 Friday, April 29th: meeting with K. Vaughan, Daughters of Charity - Security. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 19 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 20 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS  

 

(A). Presentation of proposed work to address flooding issue on the E. Eugene Myers 

Community Park walking path. Presentation at the meeting. 

 

 

(B). Construction of new ¼-mile long section of trail to link the green and yellow trails 

for consideration: Presentation at the meeting by Commissioner O’Donnell. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 21 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

I. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Re-Appoint Shannon Cool, Glenn Blanchard, Sandy Umbel, Steve Starliper, and 

Amanda Ryder to the Parks and Recreation Committee with a term of December 3, 

2021 through December 3, 2023. Presentation at the meeting by Commissioner Davis. 

 

 

2. Proposal of Trail Volunteer Workdays. Presentation at the meeting by Commissioner 

O’Donnell. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 22 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

J. TREASURER REPORT  

 

Town of Emmitsburg 

CASH ACTIVITY as of April 26, 2022 

 
$7,500,058        Cash Balance April 1, 2022 

205,694           Deposits 

-398,912           Withdrawals 

$7,306,840        Operating Balance Forward 

 

 

Top 10 Check Amounts: 

 

 

Check dates 03.29.22 to 04.26.22 

Amount Vendor Name Description Check Date 

 

Check Number 

 

$74,550 
Treasurer of 

Frederick County 

3Q FY22 Law 

Enforcement Service 
04.06.22 

 

43484 

 

$69,777 MIM Construction ADA Ramp Project 03.30.22 

 

43472 

 

$41,900 TFJ Excavating 
Cedar Ave. 

Sidewalk Work 
04.20.22 

 

43566 

 

$31,400 GHD Inc. Scada 04.13.22 

 

43519 

 

$23,987 
Comptroller of 

Maryland 

3Q FY22 Bay 

Restoration Fee 
04.06.22 

 

43492 

 

$23,774 MIM Construction ADA Ramp Project 04.20.22 

 

43555 

 

$20,062 
MD Dept of Budget 

& Mgmt 

Mar 22 Health 

Insurance 
03.30.22 

 

43471 

 

$17,549 MIM Construction ADA Ramp Project 04.06.22 

 

43493 

 

$15,075 Strickler 
Office Sign - 30% 

Progress Payment 
04.06.22 

 

43506 

 

$14,307 RK&K 
Rutters Engineering - 

to be reimbursed 
04.06.22 

 

43503 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 23 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: Presentation at the meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 24 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

L. AGENDA ITEMS:  

 

AGENDA ITEM# 1. Initial presentation of the Fiscal Year 2023 budget. Presentation at the 

meeting by staff. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 25 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM# 2. Review and approval of the St. Euphemia’s Wayside Exhibit for 

consideration. Presentation at the meeting by staff.  

 

 

St. Euphemia’s Wayside Exhibit Background 

 

 This wayside exhibit will be #12 in the Town’s future historic walking tour (11 signs 

already exist and are installed throughout Town).  

 

 The exhibit will be placed at 50 DePaul Street at the apartment building where St. 

Euphemia’s School once existed.  

 

 

 

Project Cost 

 

Town Funding & In-Kind Match:   $3,548   

FY2022 HCWHA Mini-Grant:               +  $3,547 

Total Project Cost:    $7,095 

 

 

Grant Timeline 

 

File sent for fabrication   By May 15, 2022 

Installation of panel by staff   By June 15, 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 26 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 27 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM# 3. Approval of ordinance 2022-01, which will incorporate the Board’s 

findings.  Motion and vote will be presented in writing to Board for 

approval and execution. Presentation at the meeting by staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 28 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 29 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 30 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 31 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

EXHI  BIT  1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 32 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 33 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 34 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 35 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 36 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

EXHIBIT 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 37 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM# 4. Approval of Policy P22-02, update to parking fees & fines, for 

consideration. Presentation at the meeting by staff. 

 

Proposed 5-Year Parking Plan 
Current – 06/30/2022 

 Purchase parking enforcement handheld device & software - $9,222,00.   

o Provides more effective, efficient, & legal issuance of parking tickets, allows 

online payment of parking tickets & permits, no longer need to issue parking 

permit stickers, etc.  

 Update parking code to allow parking boots, allow electronic payments via software 

vendor, allow payment of parking tickets/fines/permits via town website, updated meter 

hours, updated location of meters, etc.  

 Update / modernize parking fee/fine policy.   

07/01/2022 – 06/30/2023 

o Parking enforcement software yearly cost - $3,588.00 

o Purchase 2x parking boots & accessories. $2,000.00 estimated cost. 

07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024 

o Parking enforcement software yearly cost - $3,588.00 

o Purchase 130 new digital meters to replace existing mechanical meters on Main Street. 

$66,000.00 estimated cost. 

o Contract with vendor to accept electronic meter payment on new meters. No cost to 

Town. 

o Sell 303 West Lincoln Avenue. Proceeds to be used towards municipal parking lot.   

o Purchase property for municipal parking lot.  Estimated cost =??? 

07/01/2024 – 06/30/2025 

o Parking enforcement software estimated yearly cost - $3,650.00 

o Install 32 digital meters (15 doubles & 2 singles) & 17 poles at Community Pool parking 

lot.  $18,000.00 + new pole installation estimated cost. 

o Engineering of municipal parking lot project - $40,000.00 estimated cost. 

07/01/2025 – 06/30/2026 

o Parking enforcement software estimated yearly cost - $3,650.00 

o Construct municipal parking lot. Estimated cost = ???.  

07/01/2026 – 06/30/2027 

o Parking enforcement software estimated yearly cost - $3,650.00 

 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS = $153,348.00 + $??? for new municipal parking lot  
 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 38 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 39 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 40 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 41 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM# 5. Approval of Ordinance 2022-02, update to Title 10 – Parking, for 

consideration. Presentation at the meeting by staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 42 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 43 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 44 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 45 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 46 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 47 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 48 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 49 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 50 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

AGENDA ITEM# 6. Forward proposed Ordinance 2022-03 (zoning text amendment to 

Chapters 17.04, 17.20, & 17.44) to the Planning Commission and set 

public hearing for June 6, 2022 for consideration. (POSTPONED) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

      

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 51 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

M. SET AGENDA FOR FY 2023 BUDGET MEETING: MAY 16, 2022 AT 7:30 PM 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

Administrative Business:  

A.  

B.  

C.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 52 of 52 

May 2, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 

N. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: JUNE 6, 2022 AT 7:30 PM 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

Administrative Business:  

A.  

B.  

C.  

 

 

 


